Houstonfirst,

HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

BENEFITS, COMPENSATION, AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
July 15, 2022 - 9:00 A.M
Partnership Tower, 701 Avenida de las Americas, Ste. 200
Houston, Texas 77010
HOUSTON FIRST BOARD ROOM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Alex Brennan-Martin (Chair), Jay Zeidman (Vice-Chair), Sofia Adrogué, John Johnson, Mayor
Pro-Tem Dave Martin, Ryan Martin, David Mincberg

In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, this Agenda is posted for public information,
at all times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin
board located on the exterior wall of the Houston City Hall building, located at 901 Bagby. The
Agenda is also available online at https.//www.houstonfirst.com.

To reserve time to appear, come to the meeting at least ten minutes prior to the scheduled
public session shown on the Agenda.

Any questions regarding this Agenda, or requests for special needs assistance, should be
directed fo Lisa K. Hargrove, General Counsel at either 713.853.8965 or
Lisa.Hargrove@houstonfirst.com

l. Callto Order
l. Public Comments
lll.  Minutes — April 18, 2022

IV. Presentations, Reports, and Updates
A. Financial Report

V. Committee Business
A. Consideration and possible recommendation of the Houston First 2021 Annual

Financial Audit.

B. Consideration and possible approval of the 2022 Convention Sales Incentive
Program.

C. Consideration and possible approval of adjusting the requirement for a quorum
from a simple majority of the total Committee membership to three members.

Vl. Adjourn



lll. Minutes — April 18, 2022




Houstonfirst,
INUTES

HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

BENEFITS, COMPENSATION, AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
April 18, 2022 - 1:30 P.M.
Partnership Tower, 701 Avenida de las Americas, Ste. 200
Houston, Texas 77010
HFC Board Room

The Benefits, Compensation, and Finance Committee (“Committee”) of Houston First
Corporation (the “Corporation” or “HFC’), a Texas local corporation created and organized by
the City of Houston as a local government corporation pursuant to TEX. TRANSP. CODE ANN.
§431.101 et seq. and TEX LOC. GOV'T. CODE ANN. §394.001 et seq., posted a meeting at
Partnership Tower, 701 Avenida de las Americas, Houston, Harris County, Texas 77010 on,
Monday, April 18, 2022, at 1:30 p.m.

Written notice of the meeting including the date, hour, place, and agenda for the meeting was
posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.

The following Committee Members were present for the meeting: Alex Brennan-Martin (Chair),
John Johnson, Mayor Pro-Tem Dave Martin, Ryan Martin.

1. Call to order. The Chairman called the meeting to order at 1:47 p.m. and a quorum was
established.

2. Public Comments. None

3. Review and approval of Minutes from prior meeting. Following a motion duly
seconded, the Minutes of March 3, 2022, were approved as presented.

4. Presentations and Reports.

A. 2021 Audit Discussion
Frank Wilson introduced Mr. Joel Perez, Partner with RSM US LLP. Mr. Perez
stated the purpose of his presentation was to open lines of communication, to
provide an understanding regarding the scope of the 2021 audit plan and
deliverables, and to give a timeline for the audit and issuance of reports. Mr. Perez
emphasized that the 2021 audit included a compliance audit and he identified the
audit timeline to be from March 2022 to June 2022.

B. 2021 Budget Actuals
Chief Financial Officer, Frank Wilson, presented the 2021 final financial results.
Mr. Wilson focused on the major themes: recovery, financial stimulus funding, and
strong expense management. The forecasted 2021 budget was $-27,375,844 and




the actual number was $-15,277,189. The actual number reflects the $4 million
contribution for Lynn Wyatt Square that was not forecasted.

The total revenue variance was $14.4 million. The major variance was the $10
million net cash received by Houston First (HFC) from the Hilton Americas-
Houston Hotel (“Hotel”). When Hilton management presented their budget in
October 2020, there was not a vaccine and they did not have a good view of what
to expect in 2021. Hilton's budget was re-forecasted in June 2021 and net cash
was expected to be $10 million above original forecast.

Mr. Wilson reported that other revenues not budgeted were the $2.3 million from
the Shuttered Venue Operator Grant and the $2.6 million in PPP loans; these were
not revenues, but rather reductions in expenses.

Mr. Wilson then presented the capital expenditures which reflect a total of $8.46
million for 2021, which included expenditures for Lynn Wyatt Square ($5 million),
Hilton ($1.7 million), George R. Brown Convention Center (GRB) ($1 million),
Wortham Theater ($381,000), Jones Hall ($96,000), Miller Outdoor Theater (MOT)
($20,000), and Parking Garage ($62,000).

Mr. Wilson provided the recovery trends for major revenues from 2018 to current.
He said Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) is expected to beat budget by $25 million
plus as HOT, in the first quarter of 2022, is about $600,000 better. Hilton net cash
is expected to be three times higher than 2021; from $11.2 million to $30 million.
Food and Beverage in 2021 was $7.3 million compared to 2022 at $22.2 million.
Parking revenues continue to struggle, but are better than 2021 by about $3
million; Facility Rental — Events is about even with 2021 at $6 million; and
Building/Space Rental is less than 2021 by $200,000 at $4 million. Mr. Wilson
concluded with the total revenues and expenses. Total revenues for 2022 is
$183.2 million compared to 2021 at $123.4 million. Next, Mr. Wilson illustrated the
breakdown of expenses: Operating Expense - $92 million in 2022 compared to
$55 million in 2021; Debt Service Expense - $67 million in 2022 compared to $58
million in 2021; and City of Houston (COH) Contract Obligation Expense - $17
million in 2022 compared to $13 million in 2021.

. Q1 Financial Report

Mr. Wilson stated the themes are return to large meetings, return to 2019ish ADR,
occupancy, and RevPAR revival. 2022 revenues have outperformed budget by
$3.3 million and expenses have been below budget by $4.9 million. HOT is
$600,000 better than budget and Hilton is forecasted to finish stronger than budget.

There is a variance of $900,000 in personnel expenses due to not filling all 2022
positions, which were budgeted, and paying personnel! for one week worked in
December 2021 that would have normally been paid in January 2022, if not for the



switch from CCSI to HFC. Building maintenance is better than budget by
$500,000, advertising and promotion is better by $1.1 million, travel promotion is
better by $400,000. However, more is being spent in janitorial services due to
more events resulting in the need for more staff to keep facilities clean and make
attendees feel safe.

Mr. Wilson reported to the Committee that Moody’s Investor Services informed
HFC that its review of HFC’s credit has resulted in no action and Moody’s is
comfortable with HFC’s present rating.

Mr. Wilson concluded his report by stating that, in 2021, HFC ended with $37.3
million in cash reserves. He added that the cash forecast for 2022 through the end
of February, will likely require the issuance of sub notes in September 2022, for
operating purposes only, and HFC will also be issuing some sub notes in the
second quarter to pay for capital.

D. 2022 - 2023 Insurance Discussion

Lisa Hargrove informed the committee of two items related to the purchase of the
2022-2023 insurance coverages for the Hotel. First, management has an
opportunity to buy-down the deductible for the Hotel's property insurance for 2022
(from a deductible of 5% to 3%) at a cost of $500,000, which management
recommends against. Second, there would be an increase of approximately
$300,000 in cost for the umbrella liability coverage for the Hotel due to the recent
$44 million judgment against the Hotel.

5. Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 2:44 p.m.



V. (A) Consideration and possible recommendation of the Houston First 2021
Annual Financial Audit.




Consideration and possible approval of the Houston First Corporation 2021 Annual Financial Audit

DESCRIPTION: RSM US LLP has finalized and presented its audit report for the Corporation’s consolidated
financials for the year ending December 31, 2021. Management requests Board approval and acceptance
of the audit as presented.

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Houston First Corporation approves and accepts the following
resolution with respect to the audit of the Corporation’s consolidated financials for the year ending
December 31, 2021:

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors hereby approves and accepts the audit of the Houston First
Corporation’s consolidated financials for the year ending December 31, 2021, as presented by RSM US
LLP.






Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Federal Awards Compliance Report
December 31, 2021




Contents

Report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other
matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards 1-2
Report on compliance for the major federal program, report on internal control over

compliance and report on schedule of expenditures of federal awards required by

the Uniform Guidance 3-5
Schedule of expenditures of federal awards 6
Notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards 7
Schedule of findings and questioned costs 8-9
Summary schedule of prior audit findings 10




Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Houston First Corporation
Houston, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
business-type activities of Houston First Corporation (the Corporation), as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Corporation’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July __ |, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported

under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance

with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Signature
San Antonio, Texas
July , 2022



Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report
on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required
by the Uniform Guidance

Independent Auditor’'s Report

Board of Directors
Houston First Corporation
Houston, Texas

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited Houston First Corporation’s (the Corporation) compliance with the, types)of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance. Supp/ement that ‘colild have a direct
and material effect on the Corporation’s major federal program. er the year ended December 31, 2021.
The Corporatlon s major federal program is identified in. th?\summary ofi audltor s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questloned c sts © RN Y

In our opinion, the Corporation complled i \ isbééts wnthfthe compllance requirements
ar ec N |‘gé) major fe deral program for the year

ended December 31, 2021. g

3 | b
Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program '
We conducted our audit of complla\nce in acyordance with: audmng standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; (GAAS) the sfahdar‘ds\apphcable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards. lssued by the ComptrollenGenéral of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and (he\audlt requirements ¢ ofT itle 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Adm/n/strat/vé Requirements, Cost PrmCIpIes and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Corporation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
maijor federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Corporation’s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Corporation’s federal program.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Corporation’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about the Corporation’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud ‘Qr‘__e“rY\"of‘r\, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Corporation’s complian ewith the co\mgli’”ande requirements
referred to above and performing such other proced,gr‘@ We con\sjo}!,été’d necessary in the
circumstances. Al Wy
e Obtain an understanding of the Corpqra:fijé;}g,s lﬁte_rr;algd:&iﬁ’crol Q,vgpr-_gdmpliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures t@}@}ﬁre‘ 'apprggijiéfé’in\ the gjtcumstances and to test and report on
internal control over compljan({é%‘ééq_qr\clamjdéiW’ith thie,Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion or\],\'fhie‘\‘e\ffec;jvé;n\jé\:}? of thef_Qp‘rporationi{s\_ijrifefnal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion ’i_s\.‘;g)\('pfessgd a N L

’charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

and(e_}ﬁy“%iénificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
:|d;§rﬁified during the audit.

\

O

,“,;._\\ R
We are required to com{m\’u\nﬁ/‘é e with
the planned scope and:timing of the al

internal control overicompliance that w
SR

Report on Internal Control Over Cc}mpliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal contro! over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.



Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31,
2021, and have issued our report thereon dated July , 2022, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on
the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Signature
San Antonio, Texas
July , 2022



Houston First Corporation

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Federal Passed
Assistance Pass Through Entity Through to Federal
Federal Grantor/Program Title Number Grant Award Number Subrecipients Expenditures
U.S. Small Business Administration
Direct Program:
Shuttered Venue Operators Grant (SVOG) 59.076 N/A - $ 2,291,457
- $ 2,291,457

Total federal expenditures

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.




Houston First Corporation

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting entity: The schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the activity of
all federal programs administered by the Houston First Corporation (the Corporation). Because this
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Corporation, it is not intended to, and
does not, present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the Corporation.

Basis of presentation: The Schedule presents total federal awards expended for each individual
program and assistance listing number in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Basis of accounting: The expenditures for the federal financial assistance program is presented on the
accrual basis of accounting for the Corporation’s fiscal year. Such expenditures are recognlzed following
the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certam types of expendlt\ures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. T,

as\curregt yeér expend|tures represent

Program cost/matching contributions: The amounts she
‘ mcludmg the Corporation’s

only the federal grant portion of the program costs. E ftlré rogram qqst
portion is more than shown on the Schedule

Note 2. Indirect Costs

In accordance with the Umform\Gwdancex the Corporat(oh d not: apply or use the 10% de minimis
indirect cost rate, as defined by the Unlform Gmdance fo _‘.’yea ended December 31, 2021.



Houston First Corporation

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section |
Summary of Auditor's Results

1.

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued on whether the Unmodified
financial statements were prepared in
accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of
America;

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

X e
Federal Awards

Internal control over major federakptog
Material weakness(es):identified?

Y X No
Significant deﬁmenoy(les) |dent|ﬁed? R

X None Reported

Type of auditor's ]
each major federa

W
Any aud)t\ﬂndmgs dlsclosed that are required
to'be reported in accordanice with
Section 2 CFR 200.516 (a) Yes X No
Identification of major federal program:

Assistance listing Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

59.075 Shuttered Venue Operators Grant

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

(Continued)



Houston First Corporation

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section Il
Financial Statement Findings

A. Deficiencies in Internal Control
None reported.

B. Compliance Findings
None reported.

Section Il
Federal Award Finding and Questioned Costs

A. Deficiencies in Internal Control
None reported.
B. Compliance Findings

None reported.




Houston First Corporation

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Prior Year Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

10






Houston First Corporation

Report to the Board of Directors
July , 2022



Wil Z0g

Members of the Board of Directors
Houston First Corporation
Houston, Texas

We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the basic financial statements of the Houston
First Corporation (the Corporation) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021. This report
summarizes certain matters required by professional standards to be communicated to you in your
oversight responsibility for the Corporation’s financial reporting process.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone other than this specified party. It will be our pleasure to respond to
any questions you have about this report. We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of service to
the Corporation.

Signature



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Required Communications 1-2
Significant Accounting Estimates 3

Exhibit A—Significant Written Communication Between Management and Our Firm
e Representation Letter



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Auditing standards generally accepted a in the United States of America (AU-C 260, The Auditor's
Communication With Those Charged With Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way
communication between the auditor and those charged with governance. Consistent with this
requirement, the following summarizes our responsibilities regarding the basic financial statement audit
as well as observations arising from our audit that are significant and relevant to your responsibility to
oversee the financial and related compliance reporting process.

Our Responsibilities With Regard to the Financial Statement and Compliance
Audit

Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States have been
described to you in our arrangement letter dated March 4, 2022. Our audit of the basic financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities,
which are also described in that letter.

Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of the Financial Statement Audit

We have issued a separate communication dated April 18, 2022, regarding the planned scope and timing
of our audit and identified significant risks.

Accounting Policies and Practices

Preferability of Accounting Policies and Practices

Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, in certain circumstances,
management may select among alternative accounting practices. In our view, in such circumstances,
management has selected the preferable accounting practice.

Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of the accounting policies used by the
Corporation. The Corporation did not adopt any significant new accounting policies, nor have there been
any changes in existing significant accounting policies during the current period.

Significant Accounting Policies
We did not identify any significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there
is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Unusual Transactions
We did not identify any significant unusual transactions.

Audit Adjustments and Uncorrected Misstatements

There were no audit adjustments made to the original trial balance presented to us to begin our audit.
We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other than misstatements that are clearly trivial.
Observations About the Audit Process

Disagreements With Management

We encountered no disagreements with management over the application of significant accounting

principles, the basis for management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the audit or
significant disclosures to be included in the basic financial statements.



Consultations With Other Accountants
We are not aware of any consultations management had with other accountants about accounting or
auditing matters.

Significant Issues Discussed With Management
No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or were the subject of correspondence with
management.

Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with management during the audit.

Difficult or Contentious Matters That Required Consultation
We did not encounter any significant and difficult or contentious matters that required consultation outside
the engagement team.

Significant Written Communication Between Management and Our Firm

Copies of significant written communication between our firm and the management of the Corporation,
including the representation letter provided to us by management, are attached as Exhibit A.



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and
experience about past and current events, and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to
monitor throughout the year the process used to determine and record these accounting estimates. The
following summarizes the significant accounting estimates reflected in the Corporation’s December 31,

2021, basic financial statements.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable

Accounting policy

Management’s estimation
process

Basis for our conclusion
on the reasonableness of
the estimate

An allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable has been established
based on historical experience and any specific customer collection
issues that have been identified.

The determination is made based on the account receivable aging report
at end of year with a specific focus on outstanding balances older than 90
days and consideration for the specific customer collection issues
identified at year-end.

We concluded the estimates ‘used by management appear reasonable.

Depreciable Life of Property and Equipment

Accounting policy

Management’s estimation
process

Basis for our conclusion
on the reasonableness of
the estimate

Leases
Accounting policy

Management’s estimation
process

Basis for our conclusion
on the reasonableness of
the estimate

The depreciable life of property and equipment is set at the estimated
useful life of the related asset.

The determination is made at the time the asset is placed into service and
involves various judgments and assumptios, including the estimated
useful life and prior experience.

We concluded the estimates used by management appear reasonable.

The policy requires recognition of certain assets and liabilities for leases
that are considered long-term and require a present value calculation
using discount rate which may be an imputed rate/incremental borrowing
rate.

The calculation of the present value is made upon the execution of a
lease agreement/implementation of the Standard based on the terms and
conditions on the lease execution date or date of implementation of GASB
Statement No. 87 (January 1, 2020).

We concluded the estimates used by management appear reasonable
based on the present value calculations and related terms used at the
date of implementation and changes made subsequent to the initial
measurement date



EXHIBIT A

Significant Written Communication Between
Management and Our Firm






Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Financial Statements
December 31, 2021



Contents

Independent auditor's report 1-2
Management's discussion and analysis (unaudited) 3-9
Financial statements
Statement of net position 10
Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position 11
Statement of cash flows 12-13
Notes to financial statements 14-30

Q‘*S\
i;,(ft | C-;fj
ORI
~ '(A,\ 4 (/
QO D @

N
oS

% \é\ﬁ 2y

A C;\:)‘ C

2 97 O

2 w

A WO

Q9 <



Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Houston First Corporation

Report on The Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Houston First Corporation (the Corporation), which comprise the
statement of net position as of December 31, 2021, the related statement of revenues, expenses and changes
in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements, as listed on the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the Corporation as of December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards ‘generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Auditiof the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are required to be independent of the Corporation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our-audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis-for our-audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation.and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally acceptedin the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement; whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Corporation’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management'’s
discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing-the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial'statements and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. WWe do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July , 2022, on
our consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Signature
San Antonio, Texas
July , 2022



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

The following discussion of Houston First Corporation (the Corporation or HFC) should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this report. Historical
results and trends that might appear should not be taken as indicative of future operations. The results of
operations and financial condition of the Corporation, as reflected in the accompanying financial
statements and related notes, are subject to management'’s evaluation and interpretation of business
conditions, changing capital market conditions and other factors that could affect the ongoing viability of
the Corporation.

The Houston Convention Center Hotel Corporation (Hotel Corporation) was formed on behalf of the City
of Houston, Texas (the City), in February 2000 pursuant to Chapter 431, Subchapter D, of the Texas
Transportation Code, and Chapter 394 of the Texas Local Government Code. It was organized for the
specific purpose of constructing, improving, enlarging, equipping, repairing, operating and maintaining a
convention center hotel (the Hotel) located near and connected to the Georgg R. Brown Convention
Center (the Convention Center). In this regard, the Hotel Corporation was r “p n3|ble for overseeing the
construction and development of the Hotel; a 1,600-space parking garagé?l e Parking Garage); and
three skywalks connecting the Hotel, the Parking Garage and the Conyéntion Center (the Project).
. Construction was completed and the Project opened for busMéss lmle’cember 2003 as the Hilton
Americas—Houston (the Hilton). As of December 31, 2021 gHjlton M‘anagement LLC managed the Hotel
through a qualified management contract (the Managzmé ’{Agréement)

On June 1, 2011, the Houston City Council (the Clgy‘Cou;Lal appj‘o’vegkthe consolidation of the City’s
Convention & Entertainment Facilities Departm nti thc—; E)epa “mehwtmﬁfo the Hotel Corporation (the
Consolidation), effective July 1, 2011, in ordegto g(o“ve th*@ cocpr‘d ation of the City’s convention and
entertainment services by bringing various & |ﬁt|t|es§r spof\s blyfér ‘generating and spending City hotel
occupancy tax (HOT) revenues under opés ove nlh b’o&iy Ifyconnechon with the Consolidation, the
Hotel Corporation reconstituted and Ié,[f eq its elf;ab thé&Hduston First Corporation, which assumed the
primary roles and responsibilities Qf"the De a‘r; é t. To;accomplish this, the Hotel Corporation amended
its bylaws and articles of i mcorpora ion. ofbrpaﬁd |ts*é’uthonty to accomplish its expanded duties and
responsibilities. The Corporation ha§~the adth“onty»do exercise all rights and privileges of a Texas nonprofit
corporation and, as a governmentq[“dn|t W|th|Q¢|;1e meaning of Chapter 101 of the Texas Civil Practice
Remedies Code, its operationg:dré governmigrital and not proprietary functions. The Corporation is
governed by the Board of Dlm\aétors appointed and approved by the Mayor and the City Council.

The City entered into a Iease agreement and an interlocal agreement (the Consolidation Interlocal
Agreement) with the Corporation, whereby the Corporation (a) leases all previously existing Department
facilities and Department-managed facilities; (b) operates, manages, maintains, develops and redevelops
those existing facilities; (c) has been assigned and now administers all of the Department’s obligations
and responsibilities, as well as its revenue budgeted as part of the Department’s budget including, but not
limited to, municipal HOT receipts, license fees and concession revenues; and (d) as the City's agent,
collects, administers and audits HOT funds in accordance with terms of City ordinances. The Corporation
paid the City a one-time fee of $8,620,000 during the City's fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, from
operating revenues of the Hotel. The Consolidation Interlocal Agreement's initial term expires on
December 31, 2026, but will be extended automatically until June 30, 2041, unless canceled by either
party on or before June 30, 2026.



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

On March 4, 2013, the Corporation formed Houston First Holdings, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Corporation, as a special-purpose entity for the purpose of owning, holding, selling, leasing, transferring,
exchanging, operating, managing and otherwise dealing with the Hilton and its parking garage.

On June 18, 2014, the Corporation entered into a services agreement with the Greater Houston
Convention and Visitors Bureau (the Bureau), which engaged the Corporation to provide marketing,
advertising and promotional programs on behalf of the Bureau at a minimum of the same levels
previously funded by the Corporation to the Bureau. The Bureau's employees have been added to the
Corporation’s existing personnel services contract, effective July 1, 2014. The services agreement
required the Corporation to amend its Certificate of Formation to increase the number of authorized board
members from 11 to 13 to include two Bureau board members. The expenses incurred as a result of the
services agreement are included in operating expenses as Visit Houston expenses.

The City and the Corporation entered into the First and Second Amendment to the lease agreement
between the parties to amend and restate certain provisions pertaining to insurance, disasters, damage
from casualty and City Council approvals, allocations and appropriations.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Corporation’s assets, deferred outflows
and inflows of resources and liabilities, with the difference reported as net position. Comparisons in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Corporation is improving
or deteriorating. The statement of net position can be found on page 18 of this report.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position report the Corporation’s revenues,
expenses and resulting change in net position during the period reported regardless of when cash is
received or paid. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position for some items that will affect cash flow in future fiscal years. The statement
of revenues, expenses and changes-in net position can be found on page 11 of this report.

The statement of cash flows report how much cash was provided by or used for, the Corporation’s
operations, financing and investing activities, and acquisition or retirement of capital assets. The
statement of cash flows can be found on pages 12-13 of this report.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a complete
understanding of the data in the financial statements described above. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 14-29 of this report.

Financial Highlights

COVID-19: The wide availability of vaccines has loosened the impact of COVID-19 to revenues in 2021
with several larger events being held in the summer of 2021 and leisure travel returning. Some Houston
businesses have employees returning to work, albeit a more hybrid model. However, COVID-19 variants
caused some cancelations and postponement of some large events (particularly in the first half of the
year). COVID-19 continued to impact the hospitality and convention industries in 2021 and, to a lesser
extent, has continued into 2022.



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

HFC has managed expenses in 2021 but drew on the City's $20 million commitment, as well as the
available Subordinated Note program. Analysis of previous economic downturns reveals a three to five-
year time span for revenues to return to normal. As economic recovery continues, Management intends
to monitor changes in economic conditions closely with a more fluid budget to accommodate changing
conditions. However, the availability of cash reserves and access to the Subordinated Note program will
allow HFC to meet its debt obligations and operating expenses through 2023 when HFC expects to return
to a balanced budget.

Condensed Statements of Net Position Information
December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
S
Current assets $ 84)508,871 $ 74,731,598
Noncurrent assets < i (23?1*53,588,343 158,284,733
Capital assets g ,ﬁ@ 474,543,929 488,250,559

)

Total assets $ 712,641,143  $ 721,266,890

s>

Deferred outflow of resources <§ 3,777,885 $ 4,093,272

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

$ 83,501,919 $ 89,944,594
470,234,511 449,357,468

Total liabilities $ 553,736,430 $ 539,302,062

$ 54,590,606 $ 59,551,231

Deferred inflow of resources %

ROEA

Net investment in capital@é‘séts $ 120,696,516  $ 124,111,110

Restricted for debt senicé 7,493,341 6,230,832

Restricted—other 3,554,451 -

Unrestricted deficit (23,652,216) (3,935,073)
Net position $ 108,092,092 $ 126,406,869

Net position: The Corporation’s net position decreased $18,314,777 to $108,092,092 at December 31,
2021, from $126,506,869 at December 31, 2020, representing a 14.49% decrease. Of this decrease,
$14,434,368 is attributable to an increase in liabilities offset by a decrease in deferred inflow of resources
of $4,960,725, combined with a decrease in total assets of $8,625,747.

Total assets decreased $8,625,747 to $712,641,143 at December 31, 2021, from $721,266,890 at
December 31, 2020. This decrease was primarily the result of a $13,706,630 decrease in capital assets,
as described below, offset by an increase in current assets of $9,777,273. The increase in current assets
was largely caused by an increase in deposits held by others of $6,167,715, as described below,



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Total liabilities increased $14,434,368 to $553,736,430 in 2021, from $539,302,062 in 2020. The change
was attributable to an increase in current portion of notes payable of $3,425,597 and an increase in long-
term portion of notes payable of $7,418,854, as described below, and a $16 million increase in other
liability due to the City, as described in Note 9. These increases are offset by a decrease in due to city of
Houston of $15,797,613. The decrease in due to City is reflective of the net settlement of HOT proceeds
between the Corporation and the City.

Capital Assets

Property, plant and equipment—net decreased by $13,706,630 to $474,543,929 in 2021 from
$488,250,559 in 2020. This decrease was caused by depreciation expense of $21,992,150 offset by
capital acquisitions of $8,285,522.

Right to use-leased asset decreased by $2,434,877 to $11,825,368 in 2021;f?‘®i>n $14,260,245 in 2020,
caused by amortization.

Debt Payment and Issuance AL %32),,
v
The Corporation made required principal payments totallrjg’g‘ 1& 245 000 and $11,300,000 in 2021 and
2020, respectively. \ \,) < 8) N
N [ >

In March 2021 and July 2021, the Corporation cirew on: thé $20T)0Qg000 commitment from the City for
COVID-19 recovery. In June 2021, the Corpo(\étron dfew $6,000,000 from the 2017 Subordinate Lien
Flexible Rate Notes to fund a debt service, rqsérve&:réquj‘rérﬁem{és a result of the refinancing of the VALIC

mortgage loan, as well as other fees a3§ociated thh me re{méncmg

The total notes payable balance mglqdes thé Coép’ératlop 5 allocable portion of the unamortized bond
premiums, net of discounts, which’ ’totalgd $225‘ 2 662 and $26,064,615 at December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively. 3

v\

The Corporation funds 1/12th of the annual débf service payment each month so that, on March 1 and
September 1 of each year, the full amount will be available for payment. These funds, along with the
required reserve funds aré.ﬁéld by the City. Funds held by the City, listed as equity in pooled
investments—restricted, are invested in the City’s general investment pool. The amount of the
investments held by the City was $25,430,085 and $23,932,368 at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Condensed Statements of Changes in Net Position Information

December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Operating revenues:

Hotel revenues $ 42,647,280 $ 27,677,033
Venue revenues 21,088,569 19,683,056
Parking revenues 11,530,132 5,622,653
Other operating revenues 3,322,346 8,787,211
Total operating revenues 78,588,327 61,769,953

Operating expenses: ,\\\
Hotel expenses ’45 178 206 12,953,739
Venue expenses ’28 943,568 26,863,305
Parking expenses 2 6,450,028 6,283,032
Visit Houston expenses 11,933,427 10,717,269
General and administrative . 27,637,398 30,896,772
Enterprise development 3 4,240,166 2,644,797
Hurricane Harvey costs 190,359 345,289
Depreciation and amortization 21,992,150 20,984,471
116,565,392 111,688,674

Total operating expenses

Operating loss <j{‘<’,"" X

(37,977,065)

(49,918,721)

Nonoperating revenues (expensesQ N
Intergovernmental revenue from “brimary gbye’rnment
Grants 5
Intergovernmental expehé‘.es-—pnmary government
Other contributions
Interest expense
Interest income
Loss on capital asset disposal

Total nonoperating revenues

57,127,628 60,712,154
2,291,457 -
(32,732,715) (14,206,331)
8,000,000 -
(17,188,230) (16,369,249)
2,064,148 1,562,180

- (3,069,497)
19,562,288 28,629,257

Change in net position

Net position—beginning of year

(18,414,777)

126,506,869

(21,289,464)

147,796,333

Net position—end of year

$ 108,092,092

$ 126,506,869




Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Operating Revenues

Total operating revenues for 2021 and 2020 were $78,588,327 and $61,769,953, respectively, which
represents a 27.23% increase of $16,818,374. The majority of the increase in operating revenues for
2021 was attributable to the recovery in the hospitality and convention industries from the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. Hotel revenues benefited from the increase in leisure travel in Houston with a 56%
increase in occupancy year over year.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased $4,876,719 to $116,565,392 in 2021, from $111,688,674 in 2020. As
discussed above, the increase was due to the slow recovery, noting a $2 million increase in hotel
expense and venue expense each due fo the increased use of the managed facilities. In addition, the
2021 operating expenses included a $1 million estimated year-end accruals N

The Corporation’s operating loss, which includes the noncash charge gf deprematlon totaled
$37,977,065 and $49,918,721 in 2021 and 2020, respectlvely o

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) ) \ .

In the Consolidation Interlocal Agreement, theglmty agmgned to tﬁe Corporaﬁon the net available pledged
revenues to fund operating expenses, caplt' ; péndlturés)angixfor any other lawful purpose. The
mtergovernmental revenue represents thé«zHO x\a'ndwplé gediparking revenues remaining after debt
service and other debt-related expems’g ar;d tHe reVenLre‘ of other remaining Department fund balances.

In 2021, the intergovernmental revénuq fl’om Pﬁﬁwér%@overnment decreased $3,584,526 to $57,127,628
from $60 712,154 in 2020. This decre“gse w4s due'té the combination of the City having a reduction in
re|mbursements of the Hurrlcane Hérvey relatqd’*costs and i insurance proceeds in 2021, offset by an

Intergovernmental Expen§és to Primary Government

In the Consolidation Interlocal Agreement, the Corporation agreed to make certain payments to the City
for obligations previously paid directly by the Department. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, these
payments totaled $32,732,715 and $14,206,331, respectively. Of this increase, $16,080,615 is due to the
settlement described in Note 9. As the largest of these payments is based on HOT revenues, the
remaining increase was directly related to the corresponding increase in HOT revenues.

Grant Award

In 2021, the Corporation received a $2,291,457 grant from the U.S. Small Business Administration in the
form of a Shuttered Venue Operators Grant,

Other Contributions

The Corporation began a project to redesign the City owned former Jones Plaza, the majority of which is
being funded by contributions. The renamed Lynn Wyatt Square is schedule to be completed at the end
of 2022 or beginning of 2023. In 2021, the Corporation received $8,000,000 of cash contributions from
the fundraising organization to offset construction costs of which $3,554,451 remains as restricted cash at
December 31, 2021,



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Economic Factors and Going Forward

As HFC began 2022, the national economic climate and in the Houston region were trending in a more
favorable direction, in spite of the lingering affects of the Omicron variant of COVID-19. As the Federal
Reserve Bank of Dallas’ January 2022 report indicated, “Houston extended its jobs recovery through
November (2021), and leading economic indicators suggest further recovery over the next several
months.” It also noted that the unemployment rate in Houston had fallen and labor force participation
began approaching pre-pandemic levels. Additionally, a leading indicator, the Purchasing Managers
index had remained above 50 from November 2021 through January 2022. However, the infection rate
and hospitalizations were once again surging.

At the end of 2021, management’s view was that the corporation was entering a significant period of
recovery in 2022, The Corporation has collected $39.8 million HOT, its Iargest evenue, from January 13t
to May 31, 2022, which is nearing pre-pandemic levels. Corporation collect (42 5HOT in 2019 the
same perlod Also, in first five months of 2022, the corporation’s second Ibr&; st revenue, Hilton Hotel,
produced total operating revenue of $44.7 million, which is very closeg)tp Hilton’s revenue in the same
period in 2019 (collected $49.2 million in first five months of 2019 Dg’e to the 29 city-wide conventions
on the books for 2022 and rising Houston hotel occupancw manqg}a ent maintained a favorable view for
major revenues. <28




Houston First Corporation

(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2021

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents—restricted

Accounts recelvable, net

Notes receivable—current

Prepald expenses and other current assets

Deposits held by others—current

Lease receivable

Short-term equity in pooled investments
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Notes receivable
Equityin pooled investments—restricted
Property, plant and equipment—net
Lease receivable
Right to use lease asset
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred outflow of resources:
Deferred amounts from refunding of debt

Liabilities

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued interest

Accrued expenses

Due to City of Houston

Subordinated management fee

Current portion of note payable -

Current portion lease payable -

Current portion of unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabllities:
Due to City of Houston
Notes payable
Unearned revenue
Lease payable
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflow of resources:
Deferred amounts from lease

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted—other (Note 3)
Unrestricted deficit

Total net position

See notes to financlal statements.

10

30,358,380
3,564,451
7,999,570

295,502
4,741,914
9,212,634
1,945,270

26,401,150

84,508,871

60,034,751
25,430,085
474,543,929
56,298,159
11,825,368

628,132,272

712,641,143

3,777,885

16,563,977
5,229,280
5,786,648

29,141,685

773,711

23,394,198

2,285,385
337,035

83,501,919

16,080,615
437,700,868
6,712,609
9,731,419

470,234,511

553,736,430

54,590,506

608,326,936

120,696,516
7,493,341
3,564,451

(23,852,216)

108,002,002




Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Operating revenues:
Hotel revenues
Venue revenues
Parking revenues
Other operating revenues
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Hotel expenses WA
Venue expenses B
Parking expenses g
Visit Houston expenses
General and administrative expenses
Enterprise development expenses
Hurricane Harvey costs
Depreciation and amortization y

Total operating costs and expenses -~

Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): ¢ o i
Intergovernmental revenue from pnmary\government» )

Grants N
Intergovernmental expenses—prgnjary governmént
Other contributions ¢

Interest expense o

Interest income
Total nonoperating revenues

Decrease in net position
Net position—beginning of year

Net position—end of year

See notes to financial statements.

11

42,647,280
21,088,569
11,530,132

3,322,346

78,588,327

15,178,296
28,943,568
6,450,028
11,933,427
27,637,398
4,240,166
190,359
21,892,150

116,565,392

(37,977,065)

57,127,628
2,291,457
(32,732,715)
8,000,000
(17,188,230)
2,064,148

19,662,288

(18,414,777)

126,508,869

$ 108,092,092




Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for personnel senices contract
Cash from intergovermental payments from primary government

Cash payments for intergovernmental expenses to the primary government
Cash payments for intergovernmental expenses to the primary government (sponsorships

Cash payments from grants
Cash payments for Hurricane Harvey costs
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: AL
Proceeds from note receivable KOS
Other contributions

Payments for mterest

Payments for interest
Principal payment on notes payable <
Proceeds from debt financing o5
Payment for deposits held by others 3 -
Acquisition of property, plant and equment .
Net cash used in capltgl%nd relategl fmancmg activities

Cash flows from investing actfynhes:
Interest received on investments
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents—end of year

(Continued)

12

$ 76,779,249

(64,864,468)
(25,193,526)
41,330,015

(9,709,291)
(4,025,864)
2,291,457
(174,247)

16,433,325

301,949
8,000,000
(2,456,041)

5,845,908

(14,908,814)
(14,245,000)
26,000,000
(6,167,715)
(8,450,029)

(17,771,558)

2,084,148
(37,399,392)
49,009,830

13,674,586

18,182,261

15,730,570

$ 33,912,831




Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Intergovernmental payments from the primary government

Interlocal agreement payments to the primary government

Interlocal agreement payments to the primary government (sponsorship)
Decrease in accounts receivable—net

Decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets ?;5.;}3
Decrease in leased assets ol
Decrease in leased liability )
Decrease in accounts payable
Decrease in accrued expenses
Increase in due to primary government
Decrease in deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating _a;_cﬁi?it’i'e

Noncash transactions: , IS
Fair market value adjustment related ‘to investmepfs. -~

RN
(N

See notes to financial statements: "

13

$ (37,977,065)

21,992,150
57,127,628
(9,709,291)
(1,734,407)
138,633
1,433,142
5,784,933
(7,172,931)
(47,197)
2,732,386
(15,797,613)
(337,043)

54,410,390

$ 16,433,325

$ (33,238)




Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization

Houston First Corporation (the Corporation or HFC) [formerly, Houston Convention Center Hotel
Corporation (the Hotel Corporation)], a component unit of the City of Houston, Texas (the City), was
formed on February 18, 2000, under the provisions of Chapter 431, Subchapter D of the Texas
Transportation Corporation Act and Chapter 394, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local Government
Code. The purpose of the Hotel Corporation was to aid and act on behalf of the City in establishing,
constructing, improving, enlarging, equipping, repairing, operating or maintaining (any or all) a
1,200-room convention center hotel in downtown Houston [such hotel to be within 1,000 feet of the
George R. Brown Convention Center (the Convention Center)] (the Hotel) and a parking garage (the
Parking Garage) for approximately 1,600 vehicles adjacent to the Hotel. The Hotel was completed in
2003 and opened on December 4, 2003.

On June 1, 2011, City’s city council (the City Council) approved the consolid%ﬁ&n of the City’s
Convention & Entertainment Facilities Department (the Department) into Qh’&Hotel Corporation (the
Consolidation), effective July 1, 2011, in order to improve the coordination of the City’s convention and
entertainment services by bringing various entities responsib}le‘{or geriérating and spending City hotel
occupancy tax (HOT) revenues under one governing body, hj coqm;géfion with the Consolidation, the
Hotel Corporation reconstituted and renamed itself as Houston @irét Corporation, and Houston First
Corporation assumed the primary roles and responsibjjit*\’és Q{ftﬁ“e Department. To accomplish this, the
Hotel Corporation amended its bylaws and articles.of iﬁ’cog@p atiohito Rroaden its authority to accomplish
its expanded duties and responsibilities. The quggra"tigrj’-\h‘asﬂtbéféqthﬁr“lty to exercise all rights and
privileges of a Texas nonprofit corporation an\dg}i‘)a‘"“s* a\gﬁ@“&igpqrﬁ%ntgwﬁit within the meaning of Chapter 101
of the Texas Civil Practice Remedies Codeyits Op@r@tibnsra?e gavernmental and not proprietary
functions. The Corporation is governed byithe Béard of Diregtdrs appointed and approved by the mayor
and City Council. PAVERS N NN

g1
o R

The Corporation (a) leases all preVJfoﬁs!yf:é&iétiﬁ@’De@g"Hment facilities and Department-managed
facilities; (b) operates, manages, maintains{.deVelops and redevelops those existing facilities; (c) has
been assighed and now administeﬁsi&é‘ll of the D;'ap%rtment’s obligations and responsibilities, as well as its
revenue budgeted as part of the 4,’é*partmen§§{bhdget including, but not limited to, municipal HOT
receipts, license fees and concéession revenues; and (d) as the City's agent, collects, administers and
audits HOT funds in accokdance with terms of City ordinances. The Corporation currently has no
employees but has entered-into personnel services contracts to provide the personnel and expertise
required to operate its facilities. The City has entered into an interlocal agreement with the Corporation
(the Consolidation Interlocal Agreement), whereby the Corporation will pay $1,380,000 for each
agreement year to lease all existing Department facilities and Department-managed facilities; provided,
that, on each adjustment date, the rent described in this clause shall be adjusted to an amount equal to
the lesser of (1) 105% of the rent in effect for the agreement year immediately preceding the adjustment
date, and (2) the product of the rent of effect for the agreement year immediately preceding the
adjustment date, multiplied by the adjustment factor. The Consolidation Interlocal Agreement's initial term
expires on December 31, 2026, but will be extended automatically until June 30, 2041, unless canceled
by either party on or before June 30, 2026.

The Corporation is presented as a discretely presented component unit of the City (legally separate from

the City). Board members are appointed by the mayor of the City and confirmed by the City Council.
There is fiscal dependency by the Corporation on the City as well as a financial burden on the City.

14



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization (Continued)

On March 4, 2013, the Corporation formed Houston First Holdings, LLC (HFH), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Corporation, as a special-purpose entity for the purpose of owning, holding, selling, leasing,
transferring, exchanging, operating, managing and otherwise dealing with the property known as the
Hilton Americas—Houston and its parking garage. The subsidiary is included in the financial stateiments of
the Corporation as a blended component unit; accordingly, all intercompany accounts and transactions
are eliminated.

On June 18, 2014, the Corporation entered into a Services Agreement with the Greater Houston
Convention and Visitors Bureau (the Bureau), which engaged the Corporation to provide advertising and
promotional programs on behalf of the Bureau at a minimum of the same levels as previously funded by
the Corporation to the Bureau. The Bureau's employees have been added to the Corporation's existing
personnel services contracts, effective July 1, 2014. The Services Agreemefr_]jg;,r‘equired the Corporation to
amend the Certificate of Formation to increase the number of authorized poard members from 11 to 13.
The expenses incurred as a result of the Services Agreement are includgd’in operating expenses as Visit
Houston expenses. f,;f\‘ /

R
On May 22, 2018, the City and the Corporation entered jnts'the First Amendment to the lease agreement
between the parties to amendment and restate oertainﬁ‘pfovi@‘é‘n% pertaining to insurance, damage from
casualty and City Council approvals, allocations and\gﬁbrgpg‘riétip‘[ﬁ\'féa

<,

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accou

Basis of accounting: The financial stater n;s;:éle‘k)le,‘gbrpqgéjtién have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting, a flow of economig”re'squ"rcés r,\ﬁ’eééy;é;ﬁfent focus. Under the measurement focus,
resources are recognized in the pggﬁg”d/‘é/agrzfgd and;experises are recognized in the period incurred.

"‘x ) :{-‘;,' ‘\ % ~{ ) A
The Corporation defines operating rgmghueé{éﬁ‘d expenses consistent with the precepts of Statement of
Government Accounting Standardg:No. 9. Gengrally, receipts collected or due from customers for
providing services are consideyr@q;b*perating»{éf‘\f/énues. The payments or amounts due to provide these
services are considered operatifg expenses. All other receipts and payments are considered
nonoperating. The significan{accounting policies are described below.

Cash and cash equivalents: The Corporation defines cash and cash equivalents as cash and
investments that are highly liquid, with less than three-month maturities when purchased.

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are stated at the historical carrying amount net of an
allowance for uncollectible accounts. An allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable has been
established based on historical experience and any specific customer collection issues that have been
identified. Uncollectible accounts receivable are written off when a settlement is reached for an amount
that is less than the outstanding historical balance or when management has determined that the balance
will not be collected. The allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $4,661,592 as of December 31, 2021.

Prepaid expenses: Prepaid expenses include prepaid insurance, interest and other miscellaneous
prepaid expenses. Prepaid insurance is expensed on a straight-line basis over the period of the
coverage.

Other assets: Other assets consist of the unamortized balance of prepaid rent that was paid by the

Corporation to the City under the Consolidation Interlocal Agreement and the unamortized balance of rent
concessions.

15



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments: The Corporation participates in a City investment pool managed internally by City
personnel. The Corporation also invests in the Texas Short-Term Asset Reserve Program (TexSTAR).
TexSTAR was created in April 2003 under the Interlocal Cooperation Act of the State of Texas
Article 4413 (32C), Vernon’s Texas Civil Statutes, as amended. It is administered by First Southwest
Asset Management, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase. The City's investment funds are administered using a
pooling concept, which combines the monies of various City departments for investment purposes (the
City's Investment Pools). The Corporation’s pro rata share of participation in the City’s Investment Pools
is displayed in the statement of net position as equity in pooled investments held by the City in
accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) statement Accounting Standards
Caodification on Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments for External Investment Pools
and are carried at fair value. The fair value adjustment is included as part of interest income. The
Corporation is apportioned interest earnings from the City's investment poolggb\esed upon the
Corporation’s relative pro rata share of the applicable investment pool. AI,I\‘bj*)t‘he Corporation’s funds in
the City’s investment pools are restricted for debt service and the TexSTAR investments are unrestricted.
e R

Property, plant and equipment: Property, plant and equiﬁzm’eﬁt are fecorded at original cost for items
purchased. Capital assets are defined as assets with an-initial cost of $1,000 or more for Hotel operation
and $5,000 or more for others, and an estimated usefyl'life inéxcess of one fiscal year. Ordinary
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense ’wlg‘\eﬁ""in@urﬁed(ﬁ,{\li‘i,’xpemes related to the development of
real estate are carried at cost, plus capitalized c)aﬁ@/ihg charges: 2 '

‘\‘\‘( T e . ) o i‘ \ !
Management reviews its long-lived assets f@;r;:jrﬁpqir;rﬁént&yyﬁe[\_e&ér events indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverabﬁl@lfﬁthéﬁe‘" is_&n indi¢ation of impairment, management prepares
an estimate of future undiscounted caks;h‘}flévyé&(ﬁ/ithb‘ut”‘iqtgﬁéé’t charges) expected to result from the use
of the asset and its eventual dispositjon: If tbfése.g;ééh flows are less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an impairment loss is recognized t’@s\writ@ﬁwm“th’e asset to its estimated fair value. Preparation of
estimated expected future cash flows.ig\inhé&réntly, subjective and is based on management’s best
estimate of assumptions concerningiéxpected future conditions,

Depreciation: Depreciation i,s*ﬁ"féi(/ided on a‘*ét,raight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
depreciable assets, ranging ffom three to 40 years.

Capitalized interest: The Corporation follows GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost
Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period, and no longer capitalizes interest on construction
projects.

L.eases: The Corporation follows GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, which defines the Corporation's
leasing arrangement as the right to use an underlying asset as a lessor or lessee.

As lessor, the Corporation recognizes a lease receivable. The lease receivable is measured using the net
present value of future lease payments to be received for the lease term and deferred inflow of
receivables at the beginning of the lease term. Periodic payments are reflected as a reduction of the
discounted lease receivable and as interest revenue for that period. Deferred inflows of resources are
recognized as inflows on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Re-measurement of lease receivables occur when there are madifications including, but not limited to,
changes in the contract price, lease term and adding or removing an underlying asset to the lease
agreements. In the case of a partial or full lease termination, the carrying value of the lease receivable
and the related deferred inflow of resources will be reduced and will include a gain or loss for the
difference.

16



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

As lessee, the Corporation recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-of-use lease asset at the
beginning of a lease unless the lease is considered a short-term lease or transfers ownership of the
underlying asset. The right-of-Use lease assets are measured based on the net present value of the
future lease payments at inception using the incremental borrowing rate. Remeasurement of a lease
liability occurs when there is a change in the lease term and/or other changes that are likely to have a
significant impact on the lease liability. The Corporation calculates the amortization of the discount on the
lease liability and report that amount as outflows of resources. Payments are allocated first to accrued
interest liability and then to the lease liability.

As a lessee or lessor, the Corporation does not consider variable lease payments in the lease liability and
lease receivable calculations but are recognized as outflows of resources in the period in which the
obligation was incurred. \,

oy
For lease contracts that are short-term, the Corporation recognizes short-térm lease payments as inflows
of resources (revenues) based on the payment provisions of the Iea§;é)?fc§6ntract. Liabilities are only
recognized if payments are received in advance, and recejvables grfé’only recognized if payments are
received subsequent to the reporting period. @}" (

OO
Debt issuance costs/notes payable: Premiums arid d‘i'sgpuﬁts iidluded in notes payable are amortized
as a component of interest expense over the app_ligﬁable{éﬁn using gh@;é’ﬁective interest method. Debt

5

issuance costs are expensed when incurred. _~ R U«

¢ L) iy
Unearned revenue: A parcel of land was.gonveyed tothe Cotporation by the City for the construction of
the Hilton Parking Garage (the Parking,Garage)) which'is-gittached to the Hotel. The cost of the land was
included as unearned revenue at the City's.fécorded acqlisition value of $3,144,362 at the date of
transfer. In addition, the City madé:a grant-to tl"@“@orpé/r’ation in the amount of $10 million, which provides
the City the right to use up to one-half:of theé spaceg)available in the Parking Garage and to share in the
net income of the parking proceeds:If'perpetuitys. This right was transferred to the Corporation upon
formation. ey Y
The Corporation recognizgg«fhe unearned revenue as garage revenue ratably over the estimated 39-year
useful life of the Parking Garage. Amortization of unearned revenue for the year ended December 31,
2021, totaled $337,035, which is included in garage revenues.

Revenue recognition: Service and other sales revenues are recognized when services are rendered or
when revenue is earned, net of sales tax.

Intergovernmental revenue from Primary Government: As part of the Consolidation Interlocal
Agreement, the City assigned to the Corporation the net available pledged revenues to pay for operating
expenses, capital expenditures and for any other lawful purpose, and they are shown as
intergovernmental revenue from Primary Government. The amount of intergovernmental revenue from the
City totaled $57,127,628 for 2021 and represents the net HOT and parking revenues of $52,706,120 and
other reimbursed expenses of $4,421,507.

The Corporation received a grant award of $2,291,457 in 2021 from the Small Business Admnistration as

direct funding. The funding provided to the Corporation is to support ongoing operating costs of live
venues for the period ending December 31, 2021 .

17



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intergovernmental expenses to Primary Government: As part of the Consolidation Interlocal
Agreement, the Corporation agreed to make certain payments primarily for City obligations to the local
arts previously paid directly by the Department. At December 31, 2021, the interlocal agreement
expenses totaled $16,652,100 of which $12,626,236 and $4,025,864 were related to funding of the arts
and sponsorship expense, respectively. In additional to the above payment to City, the Corporation
accrued $16,080,615 payable to City to cover the settlement between the Houston Municipal Employees
Pension System and the City of Houston for obligations described in Note 9.

Income taxes: The Corporation is exempt from federal income tax under Section 115 (1) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986.

Effective for taxable years beginning on January 1, 2007, the State of Texas-ghacted the Revised Texas
Franchise Tax, which imposes a tax at the entity level. The Corporation i%»e\XéMpt from the Revised
Texas Franchise Tax. L

Use of estimates in financial statement preparation: The.jbfépa;@"fi‘fiﬁ of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted ji the Qﬂ}ted States of America requires
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported fin{aﬁic;f’ialxs;aj‘;ément amounts, as well as disclosures.
The Corporation’s financial statements include amoynts‘that are hased,on management's best estimates
and judgments. Actual results could differ from these-estjnjates.” »" ‘

Ly
7

New accounting pronouncements: In Marxgh\‘f\‘é((/)EZQ,»{t %GASB i;é\;sﬁ”e.d Statement No. 93, “Replacement

of Interbank Offered Rates”. This Statemgnj;jé“s“t‘ap!ii\ﬁe!saacéou\ﬁf’ihg and financial reporting requirements
related to the replacement of LIBOnghe,\hjeﬁg;Lr‘jr?ﬁde[j\"/a”ti\/rei ifstruments and leases. It also identifies
appropriate benchmark interest rates fdr heglgitg rc}j}éﬁ"i\’/at«in\[e?i'nstlruments. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reportiQg"périggsx‘éngirq‘g aftey December 31, 2021. The Corporation is
evaluating the impact, if any, upon‘its tjpéﬁgia\ljp”t%s’(it,i\én‘, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.
In March 2020, the GASB issueqm,nS:té'fement No»94, “Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangemeits”. This Statement establishes standards of accounting and financial
reporting for PPPs and APAs for governments. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginnirig-after June 15, 2022. The Corporation is evaluating the impact that adoption of

this Statement will have on its financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, “Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements”, This Statement provides guidance on accounting and financial reporting for subscription-
based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This
Statement (1) defines a SBITA, (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—
an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for
outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires
note disclosures regarding a SBITA. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. The Corporation is evaluating the
impact that adoption of this Statement will have on its financial position, results of operations and cash
flows.

18



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97, “Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans.” This
statement (1) clarifies rules related to reporting of fiduciary activities under Statements No. 14 and No. 84;
(2) mitigate costs for defined contribution plans; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and
comparability of the accounting and financial reporting of Code section 457 plans that meet the definition
of a pension plan. The requirements in paragraphs 4 and 5 are effective upon issuance. All other
requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2021. The Corporation is evaluating the impact that adoption of this Statement will have on its
financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, addresses a variety of topics and practice issues that have
been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statgtpﬁépts. The new statement
clarifies issues related to derivative instruments, leases, PPP and APA atrangements, SBITAs and
various other topics. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiScal years beginning after June
15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. The Corporationiis evglu?a*ﬁng the impact that adoption of
this Statement will have on its financial position, results of {;ﬁ\i@rétign‘s*énd cash flows.

N AN
In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 100, “Acgounting' Changes and Error Corrections-
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 62" This Staternefit prescripés thg-accounting and financial reporting
for (1) each type of accounting change and (2) errdr c"Qrcé&tiqrggi%*%hjsgstatement requires that (a) changes
in accounting principles and error corrections,‘bégf’épg,r;ﬁ,é*dﬁrgti:&iéotix[;él&l by restating prior periods, (b)
changes to or within the financial reporting entity be:repotted by adjusting beginning balances of the
current period, and (c) changes in accounting /e‘st;imétg_sfjbe reported prospectively by recognizing the
change in the current period. The rquir‘@mémn'ts,of this statérhent are effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after Jure.15, 2023. The Corporation is evaluating the impact that adoption of
this Statement will have on its finéh{ciél\p'q)s‘itiomi; résults of operations and cash flows.

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statément No. 10, “Compensated Absences” This Statement clarifies
the recognition and measurement,guidance ‘fdrf;‘éompensated absences. This Statement requires that
liabilities for compensated absérices be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used and (2) leave that
has been used but not yet pgid in cash or settled through noncash means. The requirements of this
statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2023.
The Corporation is evaluating the impact that adoption of this Statement will have on its financial position,
results of operations and cash fiows.

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents balance of $33,912,831 as of December 31, 2021, are
maintained in cash, demand accounts, escrow and money market mutual funds. The accounts that
comprise this balance (which includes the remaining restricted contributions of $3,554,451) are described
below:

Demand deposit accounts $ 33,739,950
Cash on hand 172,881
Total $ 33,912,831

19



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

The demand deposit accounts are either fully collateralized by the depository institution primarily in direct
obligations of the U.S. government or its agencies, or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) except for $3,240,301. The money market account is the sweep balance of one of the
demand deposit accounts with a balance of $12,461,530. It is held with a mutual fund managed by Bank
of America and invests primarily in direct obligations of the U.S. government or its agencies. There are
deposits held by others, as required escrow reserves with VALIC as described at Note 8, and included in
the statement of net position totaled $9,212,635 which is not collateralized for amounts in excess of FDIC
limit.

Note 4. Equity in Pooled Investments

Short-term equity in pooled investments: As of December 31, 2021, the ch\r‘poratlon s pooled
investments included $26,401,151, invested in the TexSTAR. TexSTAR \«a%»created in April 2003, under
the Interlocal Cooperation Act of the State of Texas Article 4413 (32C), Mernon s Texas Civil Statutes, as
amended. It is administered by First Southwest Asset Manageinent,, Iﬁo and JPMorgan Chase. The
TexSTAR investment pools’ investments are not evndenced ‘by secumtles that exist in physical or book
entry form and, accordingly, do not have custodial rlsk \;j-\f \

oy
As with all the investment pools, funds are readily a\?auable«to sygport daily cash requirements while
maintaining yields slightly higher than standard b@hk depjosﬂ anoUnts )

Equity in pooled investments—restricted:- The Cgty lséued bonds in 2001, 2011, 2012, 2014, 2015,
2017 and 2018, a portion of which was fof tﬁe beneﬂt ofithe Qprporahon to fund constructlon interest and
operating expenses incurred during the e@nstruétmnﬁof the*HoteI the Convention District Projects and the
Development and Funding Agreement. d|sthSSed i Note 8. Certain proceeds were designated as debt
service reserve funds to be used by the Oprpo?a’clbn tp,s’erwce the debt during the initial months of the
Hotel's operations and during periods. Qf decreésed operational fiquidity. In addition, the Corporation
makes monthly payments to the City: to fund the: ‘semiannual bond payments made by the City. These
funds are restricted as debt seryige'funds. All *sbove-referenced funds are held in the City’s investment
pools. The balance of such acoounts at Deceimber 31, 2021, totaled $25,430,065.

The City of Houston Investi’nent Pool consists of U.S. Treasury Notes, Agency Notes, Municipal Bonds,
Commercial Paper, Certificates of Deposits, Money Market Funds and Mortgaged Backed Securities.
Certain investments of the Corporation are commingled in this pool to gain operational efficiency. The
City of Houston included the required risk disclosures for its Internal Investment Pool as part of the City's
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report which is available on the City's website.

As of December 31, 2021, the Corporation’s exposure to interest rate risk as measured by the segmented
time distribution by investment type is summarized below:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Value Less than 1 1-5
TexSTAR $ 26,401,151 $ 26,401,151 $ -
Total $ 26,401,151 $ 26,401,151 $ -

20



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4. Equity in Pooled Investments (Continued)

The Corporation’s exposure to credit risk at December 31, 2021, is presented below by investment
category as rated by Standard & Poor’s:

Rating
Fair Value
AAAM by Standard
TexSTAR $ 26,401,151 and Poor's
Total investment pools $ 26,401,151

Fair value measurements: The Corporation is required to disclose the fair value level of its investments

within the fair value hierarchy established by GASB Statement No. 72. In the fair value hierarchy, there

are three levels: §‘§

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets ¢r ]fé‘ibilities in active markets that
a government can access at the measurement date, :

/ o

A
Level 2: Inputs (other than quoted prices included within i{{g”,\fel opé)that are observable for an asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. IR0 DN
NG,

7 kY

0

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for an asset or Iiap‘i}lit;y. A8 RS
The Corporation invests in both the City’s generél paohand TékSTAR investment pool. The City general
pool investment is a Level 2 investment. Deit'secutities &lassifiettin Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
are valued using a matrix pricing techniguéi]\t‘)rpx/éi‘ﬁg*éd by.thirdsparty custodians. Matrix pricing is used to
value securities based on the securiti§§vi:rélgtibn*ship‘;to henéhimark quoted prices. Investments measured
at net asset value do not have termégbi‘”cqn@\i\tionsifdr redemptions or commitments for additional funding.
70 [ VY e

< e \\_:;‘ 7 ‘\:/,

TexSTAR is reported at fair value meagured-at'netiasset value. Under this method, fixed income
securities are valued each day by indépendent oy, Affiliated commercial pricing services or third-party

o 4
£

broker-dealers. When sufficient market activiﬁy exists, the pricing services or broker-dealers may utilize a
market-based approach through which quotes from market makers are used to determine fair value. In
instances where sufficientg‘mérket activity may not exist or is limited, the broker-dealers or pricing services
also utilize proprietary valuation models which may consider market transactions in comparable securities
and the various relationships between securities in determining value and/or market characteristics, such
as benchmark yield curves, option adjusted spreads, credit spreads, estimated default rates,
coupon-rates, anticipated timing of principal repayments, underlying collateral and other unique security
features in order to estimate the relevant cash flows, which are then discounted to calculate the fair
values.

Note 5. Deposits Held by Others

As discussed in Note 8, the Corporation closed a $125,000,000 mortgage loan with Variable Annuity Life
Insurance Company, (VALIC), which is secured by a deed of trust on the Hilton, its parking garage, the
improvements located thereon and certain personal property. In consideration of the Mortgage Loan,
VALIC required the Corporation to fund certain reserves to be held with their agent. These reserves
represent debt service reserve, the subordinated management fee and the deferred fee from hotel
operator, as discussed in Note 9, and a reserve for furniture, fixtures and equipment replacement and
renewal. As more fully described in Note 9, the termination of the former Hotel Management Agreement
in 2014 caused a corresponding release of the subordinated management fee reserves. As of
December 31, 2021, the deposits held by others included in the statement of net position totaled
$9,212,635,

21



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 6. Notes Receivable and Due From Affiliate

Development and funding agreement: On April 9, 2013, the Corporation entered into a Development
and Funding Agreement with the Houston Center Hotel, LLC (Hotei Owner), for the development of an
approximately 1,000-room new hotel facility located on the north end of the Convention Center. The
Development & Funding Agreement called for the Corporation to purchase and convey the hotel site land
to the Hotel Owner and, subject to certain benchmarks, loan $27 million to the Hotel Owner. The
purchase price of the hotel site land and other closing cost totaled $32,153,221. The Hotel Owner was
obligated to a) design, construct, operate and maintain the hotel facility, and b) reimburse the Corporation
annually for the hotel site land and the loan commencing on January 5% of the year following opening of
the hotel facility.

The total receivable from the Hotel Owner to the Corporation was $57,886,102 as of December 31, 2021,
with $250,000 reported in current other assets in the balance sheets. The ngte"goes not bear interest.

s \“».
Buffalo Bayou Partnership: the Corporation entered into an earnest mohéy contract (the Contract) with
Buffalo Bayou Partnership (the Seller). The Seller agreed to sé|l to thé/Corporation certain real estate that
called for all building and improvements on the property toh_ﬁ"e; m’ogiﬂeél in accordance with the Contract.
Prior to closing, the Seller agreed to receive and the Cofp ,‘,f‘é’tior-l‘:a\breed to advance the purchase price to
construct, restore and rehabilitate the improvements lgcgted;¢ n\f e land. On September 17, 2018, the
Corporation paid the purchase price of $2,499,765.t9 allow th: Sé¢ller tg.complete the design and
construction of the Project. The Seller did not complete:the improvenents. Accordingly, the Corporation
as the buyer and the Seller agreed to execute a‘férmination -agreement of the Contract along with the

associated note for the repayments of $249\\

Iy RN

N I
During fiscal year 2021, the Seller initj_gf@d'thé@,;épqymén 0fthe purchase price. Total receivable from the
Seller was $2,444,151 as of Decerfql@lé‘r.“”3‘1\pg@21; 8

The scheduled payments on the Ioap_;gi?e as-follows:

N

Years ending December 31: , o ”
2022 S ’ $ 295,502
2023 296,420
2024 297,357
2025 298,313
2026 299,289
2027-2031 2,761,773
2032-2036 4,289,279
2037-2041 : 7,819,687
2042-2046 7,853,268
2047-2051 8,390,390
2052-2056 10,431,415
2057-2061 10,161,457
2062-2066 7,136,102

$ 60,330,253

22



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7. Property, Plant and Equipment—Net

The changes in the Corporation’s property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2021,

were as follows:

December 31, Retirements and December 31,
2020 Additions Reclassifications 2021
Property, plant and equipment not subject to depreciation:
Land $ 14,824298  $ - $ - $ 14,824,298
Worklin process 5,143,881 6,292,125 (959,489) 10,476,517
Total property, plant and equipment not subject to depreciation 19,968,179 6,292,125 (959,489) 25,300,815
Praoperty, plant and equipment subject to depreciation:
Hotel and garage buildings 606,199,442 1,109,658 959,489 608,268,589
Furnishings and equipment 43,312,126 883,738 - 44,195,864
Total property, plant and equipment subject to depreciation 649,511,568 1,993,396 3 959,489 652,464,453
Less accumulated depreciation for: \\ )
Hotel and garage buildings (146,885,513) 19 555 1) - (166,541,074)
Furnishings and equipment (34,343,675) (2,330/590) - (36,674,265)
Total accumulated depreciation (181,229,188) { 21‘986 152) - (203,215,339)
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 488,260,559 $_1-9(13,700631) § - $ 474,549,929
oy
Note 8. Notes Payable N A

S

The Corporation’s notes payable and related prh mium for ,the yeaP end,éd December 31, 2021, were as

follows: . 1
January. 1, Betl rementsl Decerber 31, Short-Term
. g20§1 L 'Amor(lquon Additions 2021 Payable
Notes payable: - T f oA .
Notes payable—City of Houston g\$x 2991951)00 ‘$;J (14,245,000) $ 26000000 $ 310950000 $ 19,020,000
Premiums 28, 064;615& 3 C (3,611,954) - 22,552,661 1,772,793
Total notes payable-City of Houston [ 3@5,259(,Qj§ ’ (17,756,954) 26,000,000 333,502,661 20,792,793
Y U
Note payable—VALIC ' 426,000,000 - - 125,000,000 -
PPP loan payable T - - 2,601,406 2,601,405 2,601,405
Total notes payable $ 450,259,615 § (17,756954) $ 28601405 $ 461104066 $ 23,394,198

Payment of the Corporatiori”s notes payable to the City is based on the amortization of the City
hotel-allocated bonds and HFC-allocated bonds. The VALIC loan requires monthly interest payments only

until maturity on May 1, 2024,

23



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8. Notes Payable
Scheduled principal and interest payments on debt are summarized as follows:

Total
Principal Interest Total
Years ending December 31:
2022 $ 19,020,000 $ 18,640,031 $ 37,660,031
2023 18,925,000 17,811,936 36,736,936
2024 172,525,000 13,849,396 186,374,396
2025 21,295,000 9,805,664 31,100,664
2026 22,010,000 9,021,784 31,031,784
2027-2031 99,350,000 2’34"%’33 238 133,883,238
2032-2036 62,330,000 ‘42 653,740 74,983,740
2037-2041 14 835,,000 " 2,974,750 17,809,750
2042-2046 5 62661 000.0° f) 459,000 - 6,119,000

$ 435 950 OQO* $ 119,749,538  § 555,699,538

) 7

On April 3, 2013, the Corporation closed a $125, OOO OOO r‘,hort ége |Oa‘p\Nlth VALIC, which is secured by
a deed of trust on the Hilton, its parking garage,xjhe mpfoveménts I@cated thereon and certain personal
property. The proceeds were used to further. eqohomlc'dev Ibpmeht in and around the Convention Center
and the Hilton, including a new 1,000-room .\anvehtion ceﬁ er«»hotel and to fund the Convention District
Projects, including a new 1,900-space, parklng gerage énd ‘Qeftam other residential and retail
opportunities to be located on the noifh .end; ‘of thg Conveﬁtlon Center. The initial loan advance of
$50,000,000 was funded on April 432013, iat an | ifterest rate of 3.90%. In March 2014, an additional
$30,000,000 was drawn and bears" mtgre‘st at »78% July 2014, the final draw of $45,000,000 was
funded and bears interest at 4.81%, i April 30,, 2021 the Maturlty date of the note has been extended to
May 1, 2024, subject to borrower’s‘rlght to extend the maturity date up to two (2) times for an additional
twelve (12) months each, unless: ‘such maturity’date, as the same may be extended by Borrower, is
further extended or renewed by lender in accordance with the terms of the note, or unless the maturity
shall be accelerated for any feason. The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2021, is $125,000,000.

In August 2014, the City issued $73,725,000 of Convention & Entertainment Fagilities Department HOT
and Special Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014. This issue included $52,195,000 of Serial Bonds
with stated interest rates between 2% and 5% maturing in various amounts from 2015 to 2032, and
$21,530,000 of Term Bonds with stated interest rates of 5% maturing in various amounts from 2033 to
2039. The true interest cost was 4%. Proceeds were used to (a) refund the City’s Outstanding
Convention & Entertainment Facilities Department Hotel Occupancy Tax and Special Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2012, (b) finance certain project costs and (c) pay the costs of issuance of the bonds. Net
present value savings totaled $4.6 million or 11% of the refunded bonds. The outstanding balance as of
December 31, 2021, is $67,730,000.

24



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8. Notes Payable (Continued)

On March 19, 2015, the City issued $132,590,000 of Convention & Entertainment Facilities Department
HOT and Special Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015. This issue included $99,620,000 Serial Bonds
with stated interest rates between 2% and 5% maturing in various amounts from 2015 to 2035, and
$32,970,000 of Term Bonds with stated interest rates between 4.0% and 5.0% maturing in various
amounts from 2035 to 2044. The true interest cost was 3.3%. Proceeds were used to (a) refund a portion
of the City’s outstanding Convention & Entertainment Facilities Department HOT and Special Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, (b) refund outstanding commercial paper, (c) finance certain project costs
and (d) pay the costs of issuance of the bonds. Of the $132,590,000, the City loaned the Corporation
$99,620,000. The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2021, is $79,675,000.

On November 16, 2017, the City issued $12,030,000 of Convention & Entertainment Facilities
Department HOT and Special Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017. Thi§3j’§\§ue has a stated interest
rates of 2.55% maturing in 2033. Proceeds were used to refund the City's olitstanding Convention &
Entertainment Facilities Department HOT and Special Revenue Refunding ‘Bonds, Series 2011B. Net
present value savings totaled $1.9 million or 16.5% of the refunded béhds The outstanding balance as of
December 31, 2021, is $10,300,000. .

On November 16, 2017, the City issued $75,000,000 f},@onvéﬁﬁbh & Entertainment Facilities
Subordmate Lien HOT and Parking Revenue FIeX|ble at@theswserLés A (Credlt Facility Senes A). The
I't

On April 9, 2019, the City issued $106 320,@00 in dnvehtlon & Entertainment Facilities Department HOT
and Spe0|al Revenue and Refunding' Bonds Sém’és 2049 This issue has a stated interest rates of 4%
and 5% maturing in 2036. Proceeds were used’to, (&) refund the City's outstanding Convention &
Entertainment Facilities Departmeht’*HOT and Spemal Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 C-1 and
2001 C-2, (b) finance certain Hyrricane Harvey, related project costs and (c) pay the costs of issuance of
the bonds. Net present value $avings totaled '$5.6 million or 8% of the refunded bonds. The outstanding
balance as of December 371, 2021, is $87,445,000.

On May 2, 2018, the City closed on a $50 million Subordinate Lien Hotel Occupancy Tax and Parking
Revenue Flexible Rate Notes, Series B (Credit Facility Series B). As of December 31, 2021, there was a
$1,000,000 draws on this note and $49,000,000 is available. Interest is variable at the greater of
JPMorgan prime or the adjusted one-month LIBOR, plus a spread based upon the rating of the existing
senior lien Hotel Occupancy Tax and Parking Revenue Bonds. The commitment fee is equal to 0.1% and
the notes terminate on May 2, 2026. The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2021, is $1,000,000.

On May 3, 2019, the City loaned the Corporation $12,500,000, which was used to help finance project
costs related to Hurricane Harvey. The notes bear interest at the rate equal to a) the rate of the City's
commercial paper program or other debt instrument issued by the City, or b) the rate equal to the interest
earned on pool cash depending on how the City funds the notes. The interest rate on the note was
2.134% on December 31, 2019, and the note matures on September 1, 2030. The outstanding balance
as of December 31, 2021, is $12,500,000.

On December 12, 2019 the City loaned the Corporation an additional $8,900,000, to finance project costs
related to Hurricane Harvey. Interest will accrue based on the rate received on the City’s commercial
paper Series E line, which was 1.30% at December 31, 2019. The note matures on March 1, 2024. The
outstanding balance as of December 31, 2021, is $6,300,000.

25



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8. Notes Payable (Continued)

In March and July of 2021, the City loaned the Corporation $10,000,000 and $10,000,000, respectively,
which was used to help finance project costs related to Hurricane Harvey. The notes bear interest at the
rate equal to a) the rate of the City's commercial paper program or other debt instrument issued by the
City, or b) the rate equal to the interest earned on pool cash depending on how the City funds the notes.
The interest rate on the note was 1.340% on March 1, 2021, and the note matures on September 1,
2027. The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2021, is $20,000,000.

Of the total $310,950,000 notes payable to the City, $245,150,000 of the principal balance relates to the
City’s fixed rate bonds and carries interest rates ranging from 2% to 5%; $27,000,000 related to the
flexible rate notes and the remaining $38,800,000 related to the notes from the City. Interest presented on
the above payment schedule is calculated on the stated interest rate on the flxed rate bonds and the
interest rate on the variable rate notes as of December 31, 2021. O

On April 14, 2021, the Corporation was granted $2,601,405 through the;l?\e’y'/roll Protection Program loan
(PPP loan). The PPP loan is expected to be forgiven in 2022No interiés’f and principal will be paid.

Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies “ O :

Litigation and claims: The Corporation is currently\m\/olved n g‘léwsult with possible exposure and the
related estimated amounts are accrued at December 31,,‘2021 o
Hotel Management Agreement: The Corper‘é\tlon enteréd ‘lnto{q hotel management agreement (the
Management Agreement) on March 21, 2Q01 w1th the Hilton-Klotels Corporation (the Hotel Operator).
The Management Agreement had a tef,mJof 5 yeareand co’mmenced with the opening of the Hotel.

r" 3 \
On October 1, 2014, the Corporat’rq’n execﬂtedma)Management Agreement Termination Agreement (the
Termination Agreement) to terminate the Management Agreement described above and executed a new
Management Agreement (the NewﬁMénagement Agreement) with the Hotel Operator for the Hilton, with
an effective date of January 1,,2@’]4 In connec‘tlon with the Termination Agreement, the Hotel Operator
released the Corporation from® repayment of the unamortized inducement fee from the original agreement,
and the Corporation dlsbursed the accrued subordinated management fee. The New Management
Agreement is effective for 15 years and, consistent with the original Management Agreement, the New
Management Agreement provides for a base management fee of $1,900,000 and a subordinated
management fee of $850,000 (collectively referred to as the Management Fees). The Management Fees
adjust annually based on the percentage change in the competitive set’s prior 12-month revenue per
available room with the base fee to commence adjustment, effective January 1, 2015, and the
subordinate fee to commence adjustment, effective January 1, 2017. The subordinate fee is also subject
to sufficient operating cash flows (as defined) and any unpaid subordinated fees will accrue. Upon
termination of the new management agreement, any unpaid subordinated fees will be due and payable.

Lynn Wyatt Square: The Corporation has undertaken a project to redesign the City property formerly
known as Jones Plaza. The $26 million project is being funded by contributions and a $5 million
commitment from the Corporation. The Corporation expects to fund their portion in late 2022.

Hurricane Harvey: Under the Consolidation Interlocal Agreement, the Corporation is responsible for
rebuilding and repairing the leased facilities in the event of a damage from casualty. The majority of these
costs have been reimbursed by the City based on approval of claims and obligation of such funds by
FEMA with only $472,990 remaining in the combined commitment at December 31, 2021.

26



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Pension: Since March 2015, the City has been involved in a lawsuit with the Houston Municipal
Employees Pension System (HMEPS) the subject of which is the determination of whether employees of
certain local government corporations and not-for-profit entities are employees of the City for purposes of
the pension. In March 2022, HMEPS and the City reached a tentative settlement. The terms of the
tentative settlement are 1) HFC employees will be treated as employees of the City for HMEPS purposes,
2) the City will make payment to HVIEPS of $16 million 3) pension contribution payments covering HFC
personnel will begin January 2022.

The Corporation has recorded the $16 million liability as a long-term liability at December 31, 2021, since
the tentative payment terms call for payments to the City to begin in more than one year. In accordance
with GASB 68, the City will remeasure the net pension liability to include HFC employees and assign a
proportionate share from the City to the Corporation’s fiscal year ending Deg;egﬁber 31, 2022. The amount
of HFC'’s proportionate share cannot be determined at December 31, Zozg‘ﬁh‘owever, Management
believes such cost will be material to the financial statements. o
A~ Lo

Guarantee: Every three years, the World Petroleum Coun‘gﬂ},‘(Cbu_g@ﬂﬁ organizes the World Petroleum
Congress as the principal meeting place for a global disgussion 0f.bil and gas issues. Following a
12-month campaign period, the City of Houston was s¢lgcted by its fellow Council members to host the
23rd World Petroleum Congress in December 2021.iThe WPC Qrganizing Committee (the Organizing
Committee) was established as a 501(c)(6) nonpigfit corporation to agsist with the organization,
administration, management, promotion and opgrations-elating to.hosting the event. To induce the
Council to execute the agreement with the @\riga>nigi13‘g/c<§mﬁ1itt‘e' ;'the Corporation agreed to guarantee
the full payment and performance of aII‘Iia’@;j]ifi@@{gidblig\ationsﬁn’”' duties imposed upon the Organizing
Committee. As of December 31, 2021; there, hasd been ‘hgsda"ll*on the guarantee. The Corporation is
unable to estimate the potential liability: if agy. .o~

< l B R ’)»\ e 3
Note 10. Risk Management . 3" S
As the owner of the Hotel opeg;qte‘jd‘as the Huibfhi and as a local government corporation, the Corporation
maintains, or has maintained ofy its behalf, various policies and/or insurance programs to cover the
various risks of loss to whighyit is exposed. Through commercial policies, the following coverages have
been secured: property, general liability, umbrella liability, auto and theft. In lieu of a workers’
compensation policy, the Hilton has procured a nonsubscriber program administered by a third-party
administrator. Due to the division of responsibilities, the Corporation maintains separate policies for
directors and officers, employment practices liability, crime and property.

The Corporation is a defendant in various pending lawsuits arising out of the conduct of its business.
Management does not believe that the outcome of any of these matters will have a material adverse
effect on the Corporation’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 11. Convention Services Agreements

The Corporation has agreements with various hotels to rebate their HOT. The purpose of these
agreements is to encourage the development of hotels in the City’s central business district, promote
local economic development and stimulate business and commercial. These agreements vary based on
the hotel's proximity to the Convention Center and other criteria determined by the Corporation and
require a room block agreement. The room block agreement grants the Corporation access to a specified
number of room nights for use with city-wide events.

27



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 11. Convention Services Agreements (Continued)

The agreement with Hampton Inn Homewood Suites requires that 100% of their HOT paid will be paid
back to them. The hotel has agreed to provide HFC with room blocks for various events in exchange for
the agreement. The agreement with and Hampton Inn Homewood Suites is valid until April 1, 2023, The
agreements with JW Marriott, Aloft Houston Downtown, LeMeridian and Alessandra state that 50% of
their HOT paid will be paid back to them. The agreements with JW Marriott, Aloft Houston Downtown,
LeMeridian and Alessandra will expire on September 1, 2021, December 1, 2023, October 1, 2032 and
October 1, 2024, respectively. All hotels have agreed to provide HFC with room blocks for various events
in exchange for this agreement.

The Corporation paid the following under the aforementioned agreements, Such amounts are included in
venue expenses for the year ended December 31, 2021.

JW Marriott $ 284,013
Hampton Inn Homewood Suites 322,241
Aloft Houston 73,049
Alessandra 140,654
LeMeridian 84,262

Total $ 904,219

Note 12. Leases

As lessor: The Corporation leases retall @ﬁlq\ehréhears‘al ;‘:d equment space in its managed facilities
to others. The majority of these facnmes arexsubleased fr’gn‘ﬁ the City of Houston. These leases have
terms between 22 months and 60,ygars, w th' paytnent§)requ1red monthly, semiannually or annually. In
addition to the above payments, the Corporatlbp )récelves variable payments for common area
maintenance, percentage of sales, pro\r’ata operating expenses and various utility reimbursements
associated with the spaces that are not includgd,in the measurement of lease receivable.

The total amount of inﬂow_srqfi‘r'“esources recoénized for the period ending December 31, 2021, is follows:

Inflows
Lease revenue $ 2,880,507
Interest income 1,884,215
Other variable 712,659

The Corporation did not have any revenue associated with residual value guarantees and termination
penalties. In addition to the lease revenue recognized of $3.5 million, the Corporation recognized other
venue related revenue which consist of food and beverage and other concessions revenue of $9.1 million
and facility and equipment rental fees for events of $8.4 million.

28



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 12. Leases (Continued)
Below is a schedule of future payments that are included in the measurement of the lease receivable:

Principal Interest Total
Years ending December 31:

2022 $ 1945270 § 1926450 $ 3,871,720
2023 2,042,566 1,862,313 3,904,879
2024 2,149,222 1,794,219 3,943,441
2025 2,210,732 1,722,332 3,933,064
2026 2,180,372 1,648,130 3,828,502
2027-2031 11,943,609 7,099,197 19,042,806
2032-2036 15,191,896 4 831 934 20,023,830
2037-2041 12,585,202 { 2 281,691 14,866,893
2042-2046 7,270, 980 ,,;;f,.? 715,916 7,986,896
2047-2051 723, 580 oy 51,419 774,999

Total $ 58 243 429‘* $ 23933601 $ 82,177,030

As lessee: The Corporation leases facilities and equlpment\from others, These leases have terms
between three years and six years requiring monthly or annual paymehts

As of December 31, 2021, the total amount; t:)f r ghg-to use Iease @ssets by major class, and the related
accumulated amortnzaﬂon disclosed sepa]jately from qther capltal assets is as follows:

v Beginnmg ' Ending
NS Balance’ Additions Deductions Balance

Leased assets being amortized: Ty

Leased—equipment N " _""419,496 $ - $ - $ 419,496
Leased—real estate < », L.-216,252,603 - - 16,252,603
 Total leased assets bemg amomzed ~ 16,672,099 - - 16,672,099
Less accumulated amomzatlon, W
Leased—equipment (90,053) (113,078) - (203,131)
Leased—real estate (2,321,800) (2,321,800) - (4,643,600)
Total accumulated amortization (2,411,853) (2,434,878) - (4,846,731)
Total, net of accumulated amortization § 14,260,246 § (2,434,878) § - $ 11,825,368

The real estate right to use lease asset above is leased from the City of Houston and parts of these
facilities are leased to others, as noted above. There are no variable payment for the period ending
December 31, 2021. The Corporation did not have other payments attributable to residual value
guarantees or termination penalties not previously included in the measurement of the lease liability.

29



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 12. lLeases (Continued)

As of December 31, 2021, the principal and interest requirements to maturity for the lease liability is as
follows:

Principal Interest Total
Years ending December 31:
2022 $ 2,273,797 % 422,319  $ 2,696,116
2023 2,339,890 341,238 2,681,128
2024 2,382,783 256,506 2,639,289
2025 2,427,427 170,023 2,597,450
2026 2,592,907 80,618 2,873,525
Total $ 12,016,804 $ 1:2%0,704 3 13,287,508
Note 13. COVID-19 RS

On January 31, 2020, the Secretary of the United States I-{eélth an‘d’Human Services Department
declared a public health emergency for the United Statesﬁahd o kI\/Iarch 13, 2020, the President of the
United States declared the outbreak of COVID-19 in the}Umted States a national emergency. As a result
of the pandemic, in 2021 the impact lingered in the; b‘egm ing Of(tl*fe yea“r with several COVID-19 variants
emerging; however, the impact was somewhat foset b(y e dee éwa;lablllty of vaccines and boosters.
The middle of fiscal year 2021 saw a return ta. IntperSQn meefmgs, albeit with lower than pre-pandemic
less attended. The beginning of 2022 has seén muoh bettef“ attehdance and Management expects
revenues to be returning to near pre- panemlc levels‘» J

The City, as the primary governmgpt\of thQ‘Corp@atlonféprOV|ded $15 million in financial assistance in
2020, as well as $20 million in loaris at, rétés .more fatorable than the Subordinated Note program in
2021. In addition, the Corporation has: $98 mlllloma\7allable on the Subordinated Note program at
December 31, 2021, if needed, to.gpver future cash needs.

Note 14. Subsequent Eveiits

Settlement: In March 2022\, the City and HMEPS have reached a tentative settlement more fully
described in Note 9.

30






V. (C) Consideration and possible approval of adjusting the requirement for a
quorum from a simple majority of the total Committee membership to three
members.




Consideration and possible approval of adjusting the requirement for a quorum from a simple ma|or|tv
of the total Committee membership to three members.

DESCRIPTION:

The present Benefits, Compensation, and Finance Committee Charter requires a simple majority of the
Committee members to comprise a quorum. Due to the difficulty of achieving a quorum on a regular
basis, HFC management requests that the Committee move from a simple majority to a quorum of three
members. This change will facilitate Committee meetings and the passage of important business items.

RESOLVED, that the Benefits, Compensation, and Finance Committee hereby approves the adjustment to
the requirement for a quorum from a simple majority of the total Committee membership to three
members.



